
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA  94604-2688 

 
REVISED  

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
May 24, 2018 

4:00 p.m. 
 

Please note: The first business item on the agenda is Closed Session.  The Board will 
reconvene in open session at 5:00 p.m. or immediately following the Closed Session, whichever 

is later. 
 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, May 24, 2018, 
in the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. 
 
Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.  
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board 
Room) and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board.  If you wish to 
discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public 
Comment. 
 
Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted. 
 
Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, 
approved, or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is 
received from a Director or from a member of the audience. 
 
Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, 
as there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 
 
BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals 
who are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters.  A request must be 
made within one and five days in advance of  Board meetings, depending on the service requested.  
Please contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. 
 
Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing 
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in 
the BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail. 
 
Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website 
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email 
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBA
RT_1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary.  Complete agenda 
packets (in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting.  
 
Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in 
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor, Oakland, CA  94612;  fax 510-464-6011; or 
telephone 510-464-6083. 
 
       Patricia K. Williams 
       Interim District Secretary 

 

https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART_1904
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART_1904
mailto:BoardofDirectors@bart.gov


    
 

* Attachment available  2 of 4  

 
Regular Meeting of the 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may 
desire in connection with: 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

  

 A. Roll Call.   
 B. Pledge of Allegiance.   
 C. Introduction of Special Guests. 

 
  

2. CLOSED SESSION  (Room 303, Board Conference Room) 
 

  

 A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: 
Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager; Michael Jones, Assistant 

General Manager, Administration; and Martin Gran, Chief 
Employee Relations Officer 

Employee Organizations: (1) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555; 
 (2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal 

 Employees, Local 3993; 
 (3) BART Police Officers Association; 
 (4) BART Police Managers Association; 
 (5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; 

and 
 (6) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021, 

 BART Professional Chapter 
 (7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all) 
Government Code Section:   54957.6 
 

  

3. 
 
 
 
4. 

PUBLIC HEARING- 5:00 p.m. or immediately following the Closed Session, 
whichever is later. 
A. Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget.* 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

  

 A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of May 10, 2018.*  Board requested 
to authorize. 
 

  

 B. Fiscal Year 2019 Proposition 4 Appropriations Limit.*  Board requested 
to adopt.  
 

  

 C. Change Order to Agreement No. 6M4474 with Occupational Health 
Centers of California for Pre-Employment Medical, Drug & Alcohol 
Screenting.*  Board requested to authorize. 
 

  

 D. Award of Contract No. 09DJ-150A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference 
Cell Replacement.*  Board requested to authorize.   
 

  

 E. Award of Contract No. 15NP-110, Elevator Lobby LED Lighting 
Improvements.*  Board requested to authorize.   

  



    
 

* Attachment available  3 of 4  

 
 F. Award of Contract No. 15TH-120A, Reroofing and Water Intrusion 

Repairs at Train Control Rooms.*  Board requested to authorize 
 

  

 G. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9049, Fuse, Collector Shoe.*  Board 
requested to authorize. 
 

  

 H. Fiscal Year 2018 Third Quarter Financial Report.*  For information. 
 

  

5. PUBLIC COMMENT – 15 Minutes 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.  An additional period for Public Comment is provided at 
the end of the Meeting.)  

  

 
6. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 

Director Allen, Chairperson 
 

  

 A. Award of Digital Railway’s Exclusive Negotiating Agreement,  
with Mobilitie Management, LLC.*  Board requested to authorize. 
 

  

 B. Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget.  For information. 
 

  

7. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS 
Director Simon, Chairperson 
 

  

 A. Change Order to Contract No. 09AU-120, TBT Internal Retrofit, 
with Shimmick and CEC, a Joint Venture, for Additional Restraint 
at Tube Joints (C.O. No. 7.1, Part 1).*  Board requested to authorize. 
 

  

 B. Change Order to Contract No. 09AU-120, TBT Internal Retrofit,  
with Shimmick and CEC, a Joint Venture, for Impacts from Rule 
Changes (C.O. No. 30.2, Part 1).*  Board requested to authorize. 
 

  

 C. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9048, Stainless Steel Capped Contact Rail.*  
Board requested to authorize. 
 

  

 D. Agreement with the San Francisco Department of Homelessness and Supportive 
Housing (HSH) for Homeless Outreach Teams (HOT).*  Board requested 
to authorize. 
 

 

  

8. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS 
Director Blalock, Chairperson 
 

 A. Certify the BART to Livermore Extension Project Final Environmental Impact 
Report (FEIR) and Potential Next Steps.*  Board requested to authorize. 
 
1.   The BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR has been completed in 

compliance with California Environmental Quality Act; 

2.   The BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR was presented to the 
BART Board and the BART Board has reviewed and considered the 
information contained in the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR; 

  



    
 

* Attachment available  4 of 4  

and 
3.   The BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR reflects BART’s 

independent judgment and analysis.  
 

 B. Direction to the General Manager on whether to prepare for Board 
consideration at a future meeting a recommendation on the proposed project 
contained in the FEIR or any of the build alternatives.   
Board requested to issue direction. 
 

  

9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

  

 A. Report of Activities, including Update of Roll Call for Introductions Items. 
 

  

10. BOARD MATTERS   
    

 
  D. In Memoriam. 

(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.) 
  

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 

  

 

 A. (CONTINUED from May 10, 2018 Board Meeting) 
Resolution to Direct Profits Derived from Paid Advertising by 
Progressives for Immigration Reform to BART’s Office of Civil 
Rights.*  Board requested to adopt.  (Director Dufty’s request) 
 

  

 B. Board Member Reports.   
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are 
available through the Office of the District Secretary.  An opportunity for Board 
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board 
Meeting.) 
 

  

 C. Roll Call for Introductions.   
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future 
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.) 

  





  REVISED DRAFT 

-1- 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

 
Board of Directors 

Minutes of the 1,813th Meeting 
May 10, 2018 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held May 10, 2018, convening at 9:01 a.m. in the 
Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California.  President Raburn presided; Patricia K. 
Williams, Interim District Secretary. 
 
Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon 

and Raburn. 
 
                Absent: Director Keller. 
 
President Raburn called for Introduction of Special Guests.  Director Dufty thanked External Affairs 
staff members Melissa Jordan, Christopher Filippi, Cheryl Stalter and Steve Connell for the 
production of a video regarding BART’s LGBTQ employees, noting that the District would receive 
an Equality Trailblazer award from Equality California in recognition of the agency’s inclusion of 
the LGBTQ community.  The video was shown. 
 
President Raburn requested that Item 2-B, Sale of Parcel 0-A048-165X, North of Industrial 
Boulevard and East of the BART Right of Way, to City of Hayward, be removed and voted on 
separately.   
 
Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were: 
           

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of April 26, 2018 
 

2. Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 5 Funds. 
 

3. Award of Contract No. 15QH-250, Repair of Asphalt and Concrete Sidewalks 
Systemwide. 

 
 
Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit.  Director Dufty seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote.  Ayes – 8:  Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, 
McPartland, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn.  Noes - 0.  Absent – 1:  Director Keller. 
   

1. That the Minutes of the Meeting of April 26, 2018, be approved. 
 
2. Adoption of Resolution No. 5369, In the Matter of Authorizing Action 

Necessary to Obtain Cycle 5 Lifeline Transportation Program Funds from the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission. 

 
3. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15QH-250, 

Repair of Asphalt and Concrete Sidewalk Systemwide to Alaniz Construction, 
Inc. for the Bid Price of $997,323.50, pursuant to notification to be issued by 
the General Manager and subject to the District’s protest procedures. 



  REVISED DRAFT 

-2- 

 
 

President Raburn brought the matter of Sale of Parcel O-A048-165X, North of Industrial Boulevard 
and East of the BART Right of Way, to City of Hayward before the Board.  Mr. Carl Holmes, 
Assistant General Manager of Planning, Development and Construction; Mr. Sean Brooks, 
Department Manager of Real Estate & Property Development; and Ms. Kelly McAdoo, City 
Manager, City of Hayward, presented the item.  The item was discussed.  Director Saltzman moved 
adoption of Resolution No. 5370, In the matter of designating as Excess Land available for 
immediate sale BART Parcel O-A048-165X and authorizing the sale of said parcel to the City of 
Hayward or the City of Hayward’s assignee; and that the Board authorize the General Manager or 
her designee to enter into an Option Agreement with the City of Hayward for the sale of parcel O-
A048-165X.  Director Blalock seconded the motion which carried by unanimous electronic vote.  
Ayes – 7:  Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn.  Noes - 1.  
Director Josefowitz.  Absent – 1:  Director Keller. 
 
President Raburn announced that the order of agenda items would be changed.   
 
Director Blalock, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committee, 
brought the matter of BART to Livermore: Project Update before the Board.  Mr. Carl Holmes; Mr. 
Val Menotti, Chief Planning and Development Officer; and Mr. Andrew Tang, Principal Planner, 
presented the item. 
 
The following individuals addressed the Board: 
Robert S. Allen 
Nancy Bankhead 
Susanna Chau 
Gail Gobe 
John Marchand 
Tim Sbanti 
Joel Ramos 
David Best 
 
The item was discussed. 
 
Director McPartland exited the meeting. 
 
Director Allen, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Third 
Amendment to the Use, Operating, and Maintenance Agreement for the Millbrae Station and BART, 
Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board, and San Mateo County Transit District Facilities Related to 
the BART San Francisco Airport Extension Project, before the Board.  Ms. Pamela Herhold, Acting 
Assistant General Manager, Performance and Budgets, presented the item.  President Raburn moved 
that the General Manager be authorized to execute the Third Amendment to the Use, Operation and 
Maintenance Agreement so that a payment schedule with Consumer Price Index based annual 
increases is continued for another five years, from Fiscal Year 2019 through Fiscal Year 2023.  
Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote.  Ayes – 7:  
Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn.  Noes - 0.  Absent – 2:  
Directors Keller and McPartland. 
 
 



  REVISED DRAFT 

-3- 

Director Allen brought the matter of Fiscal Year 2019 Preliminary Budget Sources, Uses and 
Service Plan, and Capital Budget before the Board.  Ms. Herhold; Mr. Dennis Markham, Department 
Manager, Operating Budgets; and Mr. Michael Eiseman, Division Manager, Financial Planning, 
presented the item.  The item was discussed. 
 
Alan Smith and Joel Ramos addressed the Board. 
 
Director Allen brought the matter of Comparison of California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS) Assumptions and BART Demographics before the Board.  Ms. Herhold; Mr. 
Michael Jones, Assistant General Manager, Administration; and Ms. Mary Beth Redding, Vice 
President, Bartel Associates, Inc., presented the item.  The item was discussed. 
 
Director Allen brought the matter of Pension Funding Strategies Update before the Board.  General 
Manager Grace Crunican; Mr. Jones; and Ms. Redding presented the item.  The item was discussed. 
 
Director Simon exited the meeting. 
 
President Raburn announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 10-A 
(Conference with Labor Negotiators), Item 10-B (Public Employee Employment), and Item 10-C 
(Conference with Negotiators) of the Regular Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene 
in open session upon conclusion of the closed session. 
 
The Board Meeting recessed at 12:37 p.m. 
 
 
 
The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 12:47 p.m. 
 
Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Josefowitz, Saltzman, and Raburn. 
 
                 Absent: Directors Keller and McPartland.  Directors Dufty and Simon entered the 

meeting later. 
 
Director Dufty entered the meeting. 
 
Director Simon entered the meeting. 
 
The Board Meeting recessed at 1:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 1:57 p.m. 
 
Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. 
 
                 Absent: Directors Keller and McPartland. 
 
President Raburn announced that the Board had concluded its closed session and that there were no 
announcements to be made 



  REVISED DRAFT 

-4- 

 
Director Simon, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter of 
Quarterly Performance Report, Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2018 - Service Performance Review, 
before the Board.  Ms. Crunican; and Mr. Paul Oversier, Assistant General Manager, Operations, 
presented the item.  The item was discussed. 
 
Director Simon brought the following Engineering & Operations items before the Board. 
 

1. Award of Contract No. 15CQ-110, C35 Interlocking Renewal. 
 

2. Change Order to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Construction of Hayward 
Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction 
Group - California, LP, for Contract Time Extension (C.O. No. 275). 
 

3. Change Order to Contract No. 01RQ-120, Construction of Hayward 
Maintenance Complex Project Site, Track & Systems, with ProVen 
Management, Inc., for Contract Time Extension (C.O. No. 82.1). 

 
President Raburn made the following motions as a unit.  Director Saltzman seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote.  Ayes – 7:  Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, 
Saltzman, Simon and Raburn.  Noes - 0.  Absent – 2:  Directors Keller and McPartland. 
 

1. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15CQ-110 for 
C35 Interlocking Renewal, to DMZ Builders of Concord, California, for the 
Bid Price of $13,271,300.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the 
General Manager, and subject to compliance with the District’s protest 
procedures. 
 

2. That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 275, 
Time Impacts from Change Order No. 67 and Change Notice No. 110.1, in an 
amount not to exceed $3,600,000.00, and extend the Contract completion date 
160 calendar days, for Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance 
Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction. 

 
3. That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 82.1, 

Time impacts from Change Order No. 82, for Contract No. 01RQ-120, 
Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Site, Track and Systems, with ProVen 
Management, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $350,00.00, and extend the 
Contract completion date by an amount not to exceed 128 calendar days. 

 
Director Blalock, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committee, 
brought the matter of State Legislation for Consideration before the Board.  Ms. Crunican; Mr. 
Holmes, and Ms. Kerry Hamill, Assistant General Manager, External Affairs, presented the item.  
The item was discussed.  Director Blalock moved the Board take a position of Support for Assembly 
Bill 2161, Housing: homeless integrated data warehouse; Senate Bill 912: Housing: homeless 
programs and affordable housing; Senate Bill 918: Homeless Youth Act of 2018; Assembly Bill 
2450: Electrically conductive balloons: manufacturers: warning; a position of support if amended for 
Assembly Bill 2162: Planning and zoning: housing development: supportive housing; and a position 
of oppose for Proposition 70: Requires Legislative Supermajority Vote Approving Use of Cap-and-
Trade Reserve Fund.  President Raburn seconded the motion. 



  REVISED DRAFT 

-5- 

 
Director Saltzman requested Assembly Bill 2162 be voted on separately. 
 
Director Blalock moved the Board take a position of Support for Assembly Bill 2161; Senate Bill 
912; Senate Bill 918; Assembly Bill 2450; and a position of oppose for Proposition 70.  Director 
Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by electronic vote.  Ayes – 6:  Directors Blalock, 
Dufty, Josefowitz, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn.  Noes – 1:   Director Allen.  Absent – 2:  Directors 
Keller and McPartland. 
 
President Raburn moved the Board take a position of Support if amended for Assembly Bill 2162.  
Director Blalock seconded the motion. 
 
Director Saltzman made a substitute motion to take a position of Support for Assembly Bill 2162.  
Director Dufty seconded the substitute motion, which carried by electronic vote.  Ayes – 5:  
Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Saltzman, and Simon.  Noes – 2: Directors Allen and Raburn.  
Absent – 2:  Directors Keller and McPartland. 
 
Director Blalock brought the matter of Station Experience Design Guidelines before the Board.  Mr. 
Holmes; Mr. Menotti, and Mr. Ian Griffiths, Senior Planner, presented the item.  The item was 
discussed. 
 
Director Blalock brought the matter of Irvington BART Station Project Update before the Board.  
Mr. Holmes; Mr. Paul Medved, Group Manager, Capital Projects; and Ms. Susan Poliwka, Senior 
Planner, presented the item. 
 
Director Saltzman exited the meeting. 
 
President Raburn called for the Independent Police Auditor’s Report.  Mr. Russell Bloom, 
Independent Police Auditor, reported on steps he had taken and activities, investigations and 
meetings the Independent Police Auditor’s Office had participated in. 
 
President Raburn called for the General Manager’s Report. 
 
Ms. Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated in, 
ridership, upcoming events, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions items, noting Clipper usage 
of 81% utilization rate and average sales up 1600 per day. 
 
President Raburn brought the matter of Resolution to Direct Profits Derived from Paid Advertising 
by Progressives for Immigration Reform to BART’s Office of Civil Rights.  Director Dufty 
requested the item be continued to a future Board meeting.  The item was continued. 
 
President Raburn called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In Memoriam.  
 
Director Simon reported she had attended a brain storming meeting with General Manager, Grace 
Crunican; San Francisco Police Department; and the Mayor of San Francisco on improving the 
customer experience and quality of life at the Civic Center Station. 
 
Director Blalock reported he had attended the South Bay Engineers Club Meeting. 
 



  REVISED DRAFT 

-6- 

President Raburn reported he had attended the League of Women Voters All City Luncheon and 
Oakland Chinatown Gala. 
 
Director Josefowitz reported the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Programming and 
Allocations Committee had approved a means - based fare pilot program to present to the full 
Commission. 
 
Director Allen reported she had attended the Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority 
meeting, Contra Costa Mayor’s Conference, and Pleasant Hill BART Leasing Authority Board 
Meeting 
 
President Raburn called for Public Comment.  No comments were received. 
 
The Meeting was adjourned 2:58 p.m. 
 
 
 
       Patricia K. Williams  
       Interim District Secretary 















































($ Millions)

Budget Actual Var Budget Actual Var

Revenue

130.9 117.5 -10.2% -10.2% Net Passenger Revenue 375.4 357.5 -4.8% -4.8%

8.8 8.9 1.2% 1.2% Parking Revenue 26.4 26.8 1.5% 1.5%

8.9 9.0 0.8% 0.8% Other Operating Revenue 23.3 24.8 6.4% 6.4%

148.6 135.4 -8.8% -8.8% Total Net Operating Revenue 425.1 409.1 -3.8% -3.8%

Expense

139.2 135.9 2.3% 2.3% Net Labor 405.5 398.6 1.7% 1.7%

0.8 0.0 OPEB Unfunded Liability 2.3 0.0

 10.8 9.0 17.0% 0.17 Electric Power 32.5 28.8 11.3% 0.113

 7.3 7.3 0.8% 0.008 Purchased Transportation 22.0 21.1 4.1% 0.041

 31.4 32.4 -3.0% -0.03 Other Non Labor 92.0 86.8 5.6% 0.056

 189.5 184.6 2.6% 0.026 Total Operating Expense 554.3 535.3 3.4% 3.4%

 (41.0) (49.1) -20.0% -0.2 Operating Result (Deficit) (129.1) (126.2) 2.3% 2.3%

Taxes and Financial Assistance

65.1 66.8 2.6% 2.6% Sales Tax 192.1 196.7 2.4% 2.4%

4.0 7.2 80.9% 80.9% Property Tax, Other Assistance 28.8 33.5 16.4% 0.164038858

10.8 4.2 -61.5% -0.615 State Transit Assistance 13.4 4.2 -69.1% -0.691

0.0 3.2 -         0.0 Low Carbon Fuel Std Prog 4.0 16.3 308.5% 308.5%

3.3 0.0 -100.0% -1 Valley Transportation Authority Assistance 3.3 0.0 -100.0% -1

(12.7) (11.7) 7.8% 0.078 Debt Service (38.1) (36.4) 4.5% 0.045

(31.0) (31.5) -1.7% -0.017 Capital and Other Allocations (91.3) (100.3) -9.9% -0.099

0.8 0.0 OPEB Unfunded Liability Offset 2.3 0.0

40.3 38.2 -5.2% -0.052 Net Financial Assistance 114.6 114.1 -0.4% -0.004

(0.7) (11.0) (10.3)      -10.3 Net Operating Result (14.6) (12.1) 2.5         250.0%

78.4% 73.4% -5.0% -5.0% System Operating Ratio 76.7% 76.4% -0.3% -0.3%

0.393 0.411 -4.6% -4.6% Rail Cost / Passenger Mile 0.382 0.387 -1.2% -1.2%

* Totals may not add due to rounding to the nearest million.

  No Problem

  Caution: Potential Problem/Problem Being Addressed

  Significant Problem

Quarterly Financial Report

Third Quarter

Fiscal Year- 2018

Current Quarter Year to Date

Revenue

lExcluding SVBX, avg weekday trips for the quarter were 
405,801, 3.5% under budget and 2.4% below the same quarter 
last year. Total trips for the quarter were 3.4% under budget, 
with weekend and holiday trips under budget 2.7%.
lNet passenger revenue was 10.2% under budget due to under 
budget ridership and delay of SVBX revenue service date.
lParking revenue was $0.1M favorable due to Daily Non-Reserve 
and Long Term programs.
lOther operating revenue was $0.1M favorable with investment 
income offset by unfavorable telecom. 

Expense

lLabor (excluding OPEB) was $3.3M favorable in Q3 due to 
savings from vacancies partially offset by unfavorable overtime 
variance and under-recovered capital reimbursement for the 
quarter.  
lPower was $1.8M favorable due to lower than expected energy 
market price.
lOther Non Labor expense was over budget by $1.0M mostly due 
to material usage and rental expenses needed for emergency 
repairs and strengthened effort in station brightening.
●Q3 budget includes $5.6M in SVBX operating labor and $0.8M in 
SVBX operating non-labor.

Net Operating Result

lThe Net Operating Result for Q3 was unfavorable by $10.3M due to lower revenue and delayed 
SVBX service.  Excluding SVBX would give Q3 an unfavorable $7.9M net operating result variance, 
and a favorable $4.9M operating result variance for year-to-date.

Financial Assistance and Allocations

lSales Tax for 3Q grew 4.8% over 3QFY17 and was $1.7M favorable 
(2.1% growth budgeted).
lProperty Tax, Other Assistance was $3.2M favorable due to increased 
property tax and federal and local financial assistance.
lSTA was $6.6M unfavorable due to timing, expected to be near 
budget at year end.
lLow Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) Program revenue was $3.2M 
favorable to budget due to the sale of credits generated in prior FYs 
and high market prices.
lVTA Assistance $3.3M unfavorable due to delay of SVBX revenue 
service date. 
lDebt service was $1.0M favorable due to savings from refunding.
lCapital and Other Allocations were $0.5M greater than budget 
primarily due to $3.2M of increased LCFS revenue ($1.6M allocated to 
Sustainability, $1.6M allocated to Operating Reserves per LCFS Policy), 
offset by  $1.5M under budget SFO Ext fare revenue and $1.2M under 
budget incremental fare increase revenue.






















































	Draft Minutes of the Meeting of May 10, 2018.pdf
	SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
	300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688
	Board of Directors
	Minutes of the 1,813th Meeting
	May 10, 2018
	Patricia K. Williams





FY19 Annual Budget
Public Hearing


BART Board of Directors


May 24, 2018







FY19 Focus and Issues


• Operating Essentials
• Open BART to Antioch
• Integrate New Rail Cars into revenue service
• Staff an expanded HMC


• Initiatives to Improve Customer Experience, Reduce Costs, Generate 
Revenue


• Quality of Life
• Administrative process efficiency improvements
• Access and Parking improvements


• Areas to Watch
• Potential for further ridership declines
• Possible ballot measure to repeal SB1, reducing BART’s STA allocation
• Results of BPD labor negotiations


2







FY19 Preliminary Budget


3







Operating Sources


4


* Preliminary Budget Update – includes increased STA from May 2018 State budget revision


SOURCES FY18 FY19
($M) Adopted Prelim $ %


Passenger Revenue  $         511.7  $         485.9  $ (25.8) -5%
Other Operating Revenue                67.1                65.6        (1.5) -2%


One-Time Advertising Signing Bonus*                     -                    9.0          9.0 
Revenue Total             578.8             560.4      (18.3) -3%


Sales Tax Revenue             252.5             264.6        12.2 5%
VTA Financial Assistance                  7.1                     -          (7.1) -100%
State Transit Assistance (STA)                26.8                31.7          4.8 18%


May 2018 Gov Revise - STA*                  6.4 
Other Assistance                52.4                58.7          6.3 12%


Tax & Financial Assistance Total             338.8             361.3        22.5 7%
TOTAL OPERATING SOURCES             917.5             921.8          4.2 0%


Change







Ridership


5


FY18 YTD Ridership
• Weekday trips down 2.7%
• Saturday and Sunday down 7.1% and 


5.7% respectively
FY18 Year End Estimate
• Total trips estimated to be 3.1% lower 


than FY17
FY19 Budget
• Forecasted decline of 1% due to:


• Flat ridership growth expected in core system 
• Estimated impact to ridership of TBT retrofit project
• Offset slightly by increased ridership from BART to Antioch opening


101.0 103.7
110.8


117.8 117.1
126.0 128.5 124.2 120.8 119.7


Annual Ridership (M)







Fare Revenue


6


FY18 Budget 
• Jan 1 2018 fare changes


• 2.7% CPI-based fare increase
• $0.50 surcharge on mag stripe tickets


• Clipper adoption at 80% as of 
April 2018; up 19% from same 
month last year


• Youth discount age increase to 18


FY19 Budget
• Based upon FY19 budgeted trips
• $486M fare revenue - $43M for priority capital projects
• Full year of FY18 fare changes


$331 $343 $367
$406 $416


$463
$489 $485 $487 $486


Fare Revenue ($M)







Operating Uses


7







Service Plan : Hours of Service:
FY19 (effective: 9/10/18)


Line Route Weekday Saturday Sunday


Green Warm Springs / Daly City
5:00 am to
7:00 pm


9:00 am to 
7:00 pm


Orange Richmond / Warm Springs ALL ALL ALL


Yellow Antioch / SFO
4:00 am to 
9:00 pm


Yellow Antioch / Millbrae-SFO 9:00 pm to Midnight ALL ALL


Red Richmond / Millbrae
4:00 am to
9:00 pm


Red Richmond / Daly City
9:00 am to 
7:00 pm


Blue Dublin / Daly City ALL ALL ALL


OAC Coliseum / OAK ALL ALL ALL


8







Service Plan:  Route Headways
FY19 (effective: 9/10/18)


Line Peak Period Midday Evening


Green 15 15


Orange 15 15 20


Yellow 15/10/5 15 20


Red 15 15 20


Blue 15 15 20


OAC 6 6 20 (after 11 pm)


Line Saturday
(6 am – 6 pm)


Sat. Evening   
(7 pm -12 am) 


Sunday
(8 am – 12 am)


Green 20 (9 am start)


Orange 20 20 20


Yellow 20 20 20


Red 20 (9 am start)


Blue 20 20 20


OAC 6 6 20 (after 11 pm)


W
ee


kd
ay


W
ee


ke
nd


9







Service Plan : Hours of Service: 
FY19 (effective: 2/11/19)


Line Route Weekday Saturday Sunday


Green Berryessa / Daly City 5:00 am to
7:00 pm


9:00 am to 
7:00 pm


Orange Richmond / Berryessa 5:00 am to 
Midnight ALL ALL


Yellow Antioch / SFO 5:00 am to 
8:00 pm


Yellow Antioch / Millbrae-SFO 8:00 pm to 
Midnight ALL ALL


Red Richmond / Millbrae 5:00 am to
9:00 pm


Red Richmond / Daly City 9:00 am to 
7:00 pm


Blue Dublin / Daly City 5:00 am to 
Midnight ALL ALL


Shuttle SFO / Millbrae 6:00 am to
9:00 pm


OAC Coliseum / OAK 5:00 am to 
Midnight ALL ALL


10







Service Plan:  Route Headways 
FY19 (effective: 2/11/19)
Line Peak Period Midday Evening1


Green 15 15


Orange 15 15 24


Yellow 15/10/5 15 24


Red 15 15 24


Blue 15 15 24


Shuttle 30 30


OAC 6 6 20 (after 11 pm)


Line Saturday
(6 am – 7 pm)


Sat. Evening   
(7 pm -12 am) 


Sunday
(8 am – 12 am)


Green 20 (9 am start) 40 3


Orange 20 20 20


Yellow 20 20 20


Red 20 (9 am start) 40 3


Blue 20 20 20 2


OAC 6 6 20 (after 11 pm)


W
ee


kd
ay


W
ee


ke
nd


11


1. Friday evening headways: 20 minutes.


2. Blue line operates Dublin to MacArthur
3. Red and Green lines operate in peak period/direction, with skip/stop through downtown SF


(Richmond to SF/Daly City and Warm Springs to SF/Daly City)







FY19 Proposed Initiatives: General Fund


12


Budget Initiatives FTE Op $ Cap $


Quality of Life: Homelessness -- $1.00 $0.60


Quality of Life: Fare Evasion 2.0 0.20 --


Transbay Tube Technician Coverage 8.0 1.06 --


Process Improvement For Admin Services -- 0.70 --


IT Safety, Security, and Applications 3.0 0.60 --


Police Dispatchers 2.0 0.27 --


Uniform Tracking 1.0 0.18 --


Budget Staffing 1.0 0.17 --


System Safety Data Analysis 1.0 0.15 --


Title VI 0.3 0.04 --


Pigeon Abatement -- -- .50


Total Initiatives 18.3 $4.39 $1.10


(millions)







FY19 Proposed Stations & Access Initiatives


13


Operating FTE $ (millions) Ongoing


Parking Program Manager 1.0 $0.23 X


Parking Enforcement & Management 3.0 0.36 X


Automated Parking System Feasibility Analysis - 0.17


Satellite/Shared-Use Parking Pilot - 0.45


Art Program Collection Conservation - 0.20


Bike/Ped Gap Study, Ph. 2 - 0.25


Dynamic Bus Intermodal Feasibility Study - 0.15


BART Ridership Model - 0.15


Station Profile 2020 Preparation - 0.04


Total Operating 4.0 $2.00


Stations & Access Initiatives*


*Funded by parking revenue







14


FY19 Proposed Stations & Access Initiatives


Capital FTE $ (millions)


Quality of Life: Fare Evasion (Station Hardening) 9.0 $1.22


Quality of Life: Fare Evasion Prevention (integrated into Station 
Modernization)


- 1.02


Parking Enforcement & Management - 0.48


Satellite/Shared-Use Parking Pilot - 0.05


Art Program Collection Conservation - 0.03


Maintenance Fund to Reconfigure Access Facilities - 0.25


Station Access Wayfinding and Signage Program - 0.25


Regional Transit Information Displays - 0.25


Station Experience Design Guidelines - 0.20


Total Capital 9.0 $3.74


Stations & Access Initiatives*


*Funded by parking revenue







Capital Sources


15Total excludes $7M in reimbursable capital expenses







Capital Uses


16Total excludes $7M in reimbursable capital expenses







Capital Uses – FY19 Programs


17
* Includes safety-related system renovation, including, coverboards, emergency power, fire safety systems, 
communications, sidewalk repairs and other project categories.







FY19 Budget Schedule


18


• Feb 8: Financial Outlook (Board Workshop)


• Mar 22: Financial Outlook for Fiscal Year 2019


• Mar 31: FY19 Preliminary Budget Memo Release


• Apr 26: FY19 Preliminary Budget Overview


• May 10: FY19 Budget - Sources, Uses and Service Plan; Capital 


Budget


• May 24: FY19 Public Hearing; Adopt Proposition 4 Limit


• Jun 14: Adopt FY19 Budget Resolution





		Slide Number 1

		FY19 Focus and Issues

		FY19 Preliminary Budget

		�Operating Sources

		Ridership

		Fare Revenue

		Operating Uses

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		FY19 Proposed Initiatives: General Fund

		Slide Number 13

		Slide Number 14

		Capital Sources

		Capital Uses

		Capital Uses – FY19 Programs

		�FY19 Budget Schedule�






1


BART to Livermore – FEIR Certification May 24, 2018
Presentation to BART Board of Directors


Funding by







2


BART to Livermore (LVX) Status


• Jul 31, 2017: Released Draft EIR


• Feb 21, 2018: Released Evaluation of Alternatives Report


• Apr 20, 2018: Released Alternatives Outreach Report 


• May 11, 2018: Released Final EIR


All available at bart.gov/Livermore







3


BART Board Meetings


• Mar 8, 2018: Evaluation of Alternatives to Board


• Apr 12, 2018: Isabel Neighborhood Plan (INP)


• Apr 26, 2018: LVX Update and Summary of Public Outreach


• May 10, 2018: LVX Update


• May 24, 2018: Board Consider Certifying Final EIR







4


Schedule Considerations
• AB758


• New Tri-Valley San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority may 
not interfere with BART’s planning and delivery of an 
extension to Isabel


• Unless BART fails to adopt such a project by June 30, 2018


• Livermore Isabel Neighborhood Plan (INP)
• Adopted for Conventional BART alternative May 14, 2018


• Meets BART’s System Expansion Policy Ridership Development Plan 
requirement


• INP not needed for Express Bus/BRT or Enhanced Bus 
alternatives







5


Proposed Project
Conventional BART to Isabel







6


Alt 1 Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) or 
Electric Multiple Unit (EMU)







7


Alt 2 Express Bus/
Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)







8


Alt 2 Express Bus/BRT at
Dublin/Pleasanton Station


Above shows cross-section at the station







9


Alt 3  Enhanced Bus







10


Evaluation of Alternatives
Exp Bus/ 


BRT
Enh BusEMU


Conv 
BART


New BART Systemwide 
Weekday Boardings (2040)


11,900 7,000 3,500 400


Project Cost* (YOE$) $1,635M $1,670M $380M $25M


Farebox Recovery (2040) 88% 73% 193% 40%


DMU


7,000


$1,600M


72%


Cost** per New BART 
Boarding (2040)


$20.6 $31.3 $14.1 $21.2$30.6


* Cost to design and construct
** Cost to build, operate, maintain, rehabilitate, and replace







11


Final EIR
• Responded to all CEQA comments (~470)


• No changes to significant impacts


• No substantive change to mitigation measures







12


Recommended Action
• Certify the Final EIR







13


Alternative Actions
• Should the Board wish to consider adopting either 


the Proposed Project or one of the build alternatives
• Direct staff to prepare Findings, Facts in Support of Findings, 


Statement of Overriding Considerations, and MMRP for either 
the Proposed Project or one of the build alternatives


• Other alternative actions
• Not certify the FEIR and not take any further action





		BART to Livermore – FEIR Certification       May 24, 2018�Presentation to BART Board of Directors

		BART to Livermore (LVX) Status

		BART Board Meetings

		Schedule Considerations

		Proposed Project�Conventional BART to Isabel

		Alt 1	Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) or Electric Multiple Unit (EMU)

		Alt 2	Express Bus/�Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

		Alt 2	Express Bus/BRT at�Dublin/Pleasanton Station

		Alt 3  Enhanced Bus

		Evaluation of Alternatives

		Final EIR

		Recommended Action

		Alternative Actions

		END

		Support by Organizations

		Support by Organizations, cont.

		Support by Policymakers





